

**Rules and Regulations  
Grand Bethel of Oregon  
Job's Daughters International**

**ARTICLE I  
NAME**

**Section 1.**

- (a) This organization shall be known as the Grand Bethel of Oregon, Job's Daughters International.
- (b) The Grand Bethel of Oregon, formed in April of 1951, shall be under the supervision of the Grand Guardian Council of Oregon.

**ARTICLE II  
OBJECT**

**Section 1.**

- (a) The object of this organization is to band together the members of Job's Daughters in Oregon for the purpose of promoting the interest, growth and welfare of the Order; upholding the ideals and principles of the Order; developing leadership and responsibility; and bringing the Daughters into a closer relationship with the Grand Guardian Council.

**ARTICLE III  
YOUTH LEADERSHIP TEAM**

**Section 1. Authority**

- (a) The Youth Leadership Team operates under the supervision of the Grand Guardian.

**Section 2. Composition and Administration Youth Committee**

- (a) The Grand Bethel of Oregon shall be administered by the Youth Committee, in conjunction with the Youth Advisory Board, collectively known as the "Youth Leadership Team."
- (b) The Youth Committee shall be composed of:
  - (1) Youth Committee Chair
  - (2) Youth Committee Secretary
  - (3) Youth Committee Treasurer
  - (4) Grand Bethel Guardian
  - (5) Grand Bethel Associate Guardian
  - (6) Miss Oregon Job's Daughter Coordinator
  - (7) Other members as needed, recommended by the Youth Leadership Team.
- (c) The Youth Committee Advisory Board will be comprised of:
  - (1) Grand Bethel Honored Queen
  - (2) Miss Oregon Job's Daughter
  - (3) Grand Bethel Senior Princess
  - (4) Grand Bethel Junior Princess
  - (5) Grand Bethel Guide
  - (6) Grand Bethel Marshal
  - (7) Grand Bethel Recorder
  - (8) Grand Bethel Treasurer

**Section 3. Selection Process of Youth Committee Members**

- (a) Adults interested in serving as members on the Youth Committee shall submit a letter of interest to the Youth Committee at least fifteen (15) days prior to the Spring Grand Bethel meeting.
  - (1) All interested persons must be a current Certified Adult Volunteer (CAV).
  - (2) The members of the Youth Committee may not be immediate family members, (parents, legal guardians or siblings) of the Grand Bethel Honored Queen or Miss Oregon Job's Daughter. However, family members may assist the Youth Committee as requested.
- (b) At the Spring Grand Bethel meeting, the Grand Bethel Electoral College shall recommend the Grand Bethel Guardian and the Grand Bethel Associate Guardian from those who have submitted letters of interest. Written ballots will be cast and put in a sealed envelope and collected by the Youth Committee Chair.
- (c) The Youth Committee Chair will forward the results of the Electoral College to the Vice Grand Guardian for her consideration.

**Section 4. Appointments**

- (a) The Vice Grand Guardian will make appointments to the Youth Committee in the manner prescribed for BGC appointments. See SI 8

**Section 5. Vacancies**

- (a) If a vacancy occurs on the Youth Committee, the vacancy shall be filled by the Grand Guardian after consulting with the Youth Leadership Team.

**ARTICLE IV  
GRAND BETHEL MEMBERSHIP**

**Section 1. Membership**

- (a) Membership in the Grand Bethel of Oregon shall include all members in good standing of chartered Bethels in Oregon, including those under dispensation or reorganization.

**Section 2. Grand Bethel Officers and Choir Members**

- (a) The Officers of the Grand Bethel include:
  - (1) The Officers of a regular Bethel as defined by the Constitution and Bylaws of the Supreme Guardian Council.
  - (2) The elective Officers of the Grand Bethel shall be the Grand Bethel Honored Queen and the Grand Bethel Senior Princess
  - (3) Grand Bethel Parliamentarian
- (b) Choir members

**ARTICLE V  
GRAND BETHEL OFFICERS**

**Section 1. Process for Selection of Elected Grand Bethel Officers**

- (a) Daughters who aspire to the elected offices must meet eligibility requirements as defined below.
  - (1) To be eligible to be an applicant for Grand Bethel Elective Office, the Daughter must be the current spring term Honored Queen and/or any Past Honored Queens who are members in good standing in their Bethel. They shall have been in regular attendance for a period of six (6) months prior to aspiring for an office in Grand Bethel.

- (2) The Grand Bethel Honored Queen candidates shall be at least sixteen (16) and not yet twenty (20) years of age at the time of the last business day of the Annual Session. Grand Bethel Honored Queens cannot be installed at age 20 unless she has her CAV card.
- (3) The Grand Bethel Senior Princess candidates shall be at least fifteen (15) and not yet nineteen (19) years of age at the time of the last business day of the Annual Session.
- (4) Daughters who aspire to the office of Grand Bethel Honored Queen and Grand Bethel Senior Princess will submit an application to the Youth Committee thirty (30) days prior to the spring Grand Bethel Congress. See Oregon Grand Bethel 6, Art. VI Sec. 4 (a) Application forms will include:
  - (a) "Job's Daughter" resume including Offices held, Committees and other relevant information.
  - (b) Statement of parental support signed by the parent/legal guardian
  - (c) Confidential Daughter recommendations from the applicant's home Bethel
  - (d) Confidential Bethel Guardian Council recommendations from the applicant's home Bethel.
  - (e) Confidential Bethel Grand Deputy recommendation (if applicable)
- (5) Applications may be rejected by the Youth Committee.
  - (a) Applications that are not complete may be rejected by the Youth Committee.
  - (b) Applications that do not have endorsement from the parents, Daughters, Bethel Guardian Council and/or Bethel Deputy may be rejected by the Youth Committee.
- (b) The Grand Bethel Electoral College shall elect the Grand Bethel Honored Queen and Grand Bethel Senior Princess as outlined in Oregon Grand Bethel Rules and Regulations Article. VI Sections 3 and 4.

### **Section 2. Process for Selection of other Grand Bethel Officers and Choir:**

- (a) Daughters who aspire to the offices of Grand Bethel Junior Princess, Grand Bethel Guide, Grand Bethel Marshal, Grand Bethel Recorder, and Grand Bethel Treasurer shall submit an application to the Youth committee thirty (30) days prior to a Grand Bethel Congress at the Annual Session.
  - (1) The application forms for Youth Advisory Board members shall be determined by the Youth Committee.
  - (2) All applications will be reviewed by the Youth Committee for completeness and supporting documents.
  - (3) Approved applications for each office will be drawn.
    - (a) Applications that are not complete may be rejected by the Youth Committee.
    - (b) Applications that do not have supporting documents from the parents, Daughters, Bethel Guardian Council and/or Bethel Deputy may be rejected by the Youth Committee.
- (b) Grand Bethel Chaplain
  - (1) The sweepstakes winner of the "Chaplain Ritual Competition" held at the annual Grand Session may serve as the Grand Bethel Chaplain, to be installed at that Grand Session.
  - (2) Should she decline this office, the position will be drawn from the balance of first-place Ritual competition winners with the Chaplain winners being considered first.
- (c) Grand Bethel Librarian
  - (1) The winner of the "Librarian's Competition" held at the annual Grand Session may serve as the Grand Bethel Librarian, to be installed at that Grand Session.
  - (2) Should she decline this office, the position will be drawn from the runner's up.
- (d) The Grand Bethel Musician will be appointed by the Youth Committee for her proficiency of the Music Ritual.
- (e) Grand Bethel Messengers:

- (1) The winners of the "Messenger Ritual Competition" held at the annual Grand Session of the Grand Guardian Council may serve as the Grand Bethel Messengers.
- (2) Should a Daughter decline an office, the position will be drawn from the balance of first-place Ritual competition winners with the Messenger winners being considered first.
- (f) Grand Bethel Senior Custodian, Junior Custodian, Inner Guard and Outer Guard will be drawn from the winners of the Ritual Competitions at Grand Session who are not already serving in another capacity with the Grand Bethel.
- (g) Grand Bethel Choir members will be drawn from all interested Grand Bethel members present at Grand Session who are not already serving in another capacity with the Grand Bethel.
- (h) The retiring MISS OREGON JOB'S DAUGHTER shall be appointed as Grand Bethel Parliamentarian unless she declines the office, in which case the Youth Committee shall appoint a qualified Daughter.
- (i) All officers, both elected and appointed, shall be installed at the Annual Session.

#### **Section 4. Vacancies**

- (a) In the event the Grand Bethel Honored Queen or Grand Bethel Senior Princess is unable to continue her term of office, the Youth Leadership Team shall recommend a replacement to the Grand Guardian.
  - (1) The Grand Guardian will appoint a qualified Daughter to serve as Grand Bethel Honored Queen or Grand Bethel Senior Princess until the next regular meeting of the Grand Bethel, when the Grand Bethel can elect a replacement.
- (b) In the event a non-elective position becomes vacant, the position will be filled by recommendation of the Grand Bethel Honored Queen and approval of the Youth Leadership Team.

### **ARTICLE VI OTHER GRAND BETHEL PROVISIONS**

#### **Section 1. Duties of the Elected Grand Bethel Officers**

- (a) It shall be the duty of the Grand Bethel Honored Queen to:
  - (1) Preside at all meetings of the Grand Bethel.
  - (2) Attend the Annual Session of the Grand Guardian Council and give a report of her activities during her term.
- (b) It shall be the duty of the Grand Bethel Senior Princess to:
  - (1) Assist the Grand Bethel Honored Queen in her duties as requested.
  - (2) Plan a statewide HIKE event on behalf of the Grand Bethel to be held during her term as Grand Bethel Senior Princess.
  - (3) Prepare for the ensuing year as Grand Bethel Honored Queen by working with the Grand Bethel Guardian and Vice Grand Guardian to prepare a term plan and budget for the Grand Bethel.

#### **Section 2. Meetings of the Grand Bethel**

- (a) The Grand Bethel will meet twice a year in a Grand Bethel Congress and in Ritualistic or ceremonial form.
  - (1) Grand Bethel Congress:
    - (a) Business meetings of the Grand Bethel will be held at Grand Bethel Congress using the most current edition of Robert's Rules of Order.

- (b) The Grand Bethel Honored Queen will preside.
- (c) The Youth Committee and Advisory Board will be seated near the podium.
- (d) Elections, amendments to Rules and Regulations, and other business will be conducted without the regular Ritual of Job's Daughter's at all Grand Bethel Congress meetings.
- (e) Special meetings of the Grand Bethel may be called by the Youth Committee with the approval of the Grand Guardian.
- (f) All Congress meetings of the Grand Bethel will follow the "Rules of the Grand Bethel." (See Section 5 below)

- (2) Special Ceremonies:
  - (a) The Youth Leadership Team will be responsible for the following Special Ceremonies throughout the year:
    - (1) Statewide Initiation Ceremonies
    - (2) Any Grand Bethel Ceremony for Supreme Visitation
    - (3) Degree of Royal Purple Ceremony
    - (4) Other Ceremonies as deemed necessary and appropriate by the Youth Committee and approved by the Grand Guardian
  - (b) Grand Bethel Installation
    - (1) All Grand Bethel officers will be installed at the Annual Session of the Grand Guardian Council.
    - (2) Officers appointed mid-term to the Grand Bethel for any reason will begin serving their office upon appointment from the Youth Leadership Team without installation.
    - (3) The Grand Bethel Guardian and Grand Bethel Associate Guardian will be installed at the same time the Grand Bethel officers are installed. Other adult members of the Youth Committee are not installed into office.

### **Section 3. Grand Bethel Electoral College**

- (a) The Grand Bethel Electoral College shall be composed of three members of each Bethel in Oregon, including those under dispensation or reorganization. These members shall be known as Delegates.
- (b) Each Bethel shall select their Delegates prior to the spring meeting of the Grand Bethel, and register them as such for voting cards upon arrival.
- (c) Delegates shall not transfer their voting card to any other Daughter unless they have to leave the Grand Bethel meeting or elections for emergent reason and are not returning to the event.
- (d) Daughters aspiring to any elective office shall not serve as an elective Delegate unless they are the only option a Bethel has for one of their three delegates.
- (e) Delegates are the only Daughters allowed to vote on elective offices and amendments to the Rules and Regulations.
- (f) Delegates are expected to represent the wishes of their Bethel and their own conscience in their balloting.
- (g) Bethels will have the opportunity to caucus with their Delegates on all matters prior to balloting.

### **Section 4. Elections**

- (a) Elections for the offices of Grand Bethel Honored Queen and Grand Bethel Senior Princess will be held at a spring Grand Bethel Congress by ballot without nomination from the list of eligible applicants.
- (b) Election of the Grand Bethel Honored Queen shall precede the election of the Grand Bethel Senior Princess.
- (c) Election will be by secret ballot unless there is but one candidate aspiring to the office. If so, a motion may be made for viva voce vote. A simple majority elects.
- (d) The Grand Bethel Honored Queen will appoint adequate tellers to staff the ballot under the supervision of the Youth Committee.

**Section 5. Rules of the Grand Bethel (to be read at the start of Congress)**

- (a) For the transaction of business at a regular or special meeting of the Grand Bethel Congress, a quorum will consist of at least one (1) voting delegate from the majority of the legally chartered Bethels in Oregon.
- (b) Discussion and voting:
  - (1) All delegates of the Grand Bethel who have registered and received voting credentials will have the privilege of voting in the Grand Bethel.
  - (2) All members of the Grand Bethel who have registered shall have the privilege of taking part in discussion.
  - (3) A member desiring to address the body will rise, wait to be recognized by the Grand Bethel Honored Queen, address the GBHQ, and after receiving recognition, state her name, number and location of her Bethel, then state the purpose for which she obtained the floor.
  - (4) Unless permission is given by the assembly, no member may speak longer than three (3) minutes at one (1) time, nor may a member speak twice on any question until those who desire to speak have done so. No member may speak more than twice on the same question except by permission.
  - (5) The ruling of the Grand Bethel Honored Queen will be considered final.
  - (6) A motion to recommend the adoption of an amendment shall be placed on the floor by any Delegate present in the following manner:
    - (a) "I move that" followed by the text of the motion.
    - (b) Lengthy motions may be written and placed on the desk of the Grand Bethel Recorder and given to the Grand Bethel Honored Queen.
  - (7) A negative motion will not be allowed.

**Section 5. Regalia**

- (a) The Regalia of the Grand Bethel is the property of the Grand Guardian Council of Oregon.

**Section 6. Supreme Ritual Team**

- (a) The Oregon Supreme Ritual Team shall be composed of members of the Grand Bethel. Team members will be selected in a similar manner as other Grand Bethel Officers in a separate Ritualistic competition to be held at a Grand Bethel Congress preceding Grand Session.
  - (1) There will be five (5) Daughters chosen, one for each messenger position.
  - (2) Alternates may be chosen in case a Daughter chosen for the team is unable to attend or compete.
- (b) Serving on the Oregon Supreme Ritual Team shall not disqualify a Daughter from serving as an officer of the Grand Bethel.

**ARTICLE V  
FINANCE**

**Section 1. Funds**

- (a) Registration fees will be paid by all Grand Bethel members in attendance at all meetings of the Grand Bethel. Fees will be determined by the Youth Committee,

**Section 2. Disbursements**

- (a) The Youth Leadership Committee shall submit a budget to the GGC Budget Committee for approval by the Grand Guardian Council. All expenditures shall be reimbursed as per the approved budget. See Oregon-B-GGC 4, Article VI Section 4.

- (b) All expenditures not in the approved Budget shall have the pre-approval of the Grand Guardian Council Finance Committee unless other arrangements have been made with the Youth Committee and approved.

**Section 3. Audit**

- (a) The Youth Committee shall be responsible to see that the books of the Grand Bethel and the reconciled bank statements are given to the Grand Secretary to be presented to the Audit Committee for the annual audit.

**ARTICLE VI**

**GRAND BETHEL HONORED QUEEN SCHOLARSHIP**

**Section 1. Award**

- (a) All money, donations and bequests specified for the purpose of the Grand Bethel Honored Queen Scholarship and interest that-accumulates shall remain in the scholarship.

**Section 2.**

- (a) A scholarship shall be awarded to the Grand Bethel Honored Queen in the amount of no more than one thousand dollars (\$1000.00) upon completion of her year provided there are sufficient funds to award the scholarship.

**ARTICLE VII  
AMENDMENTS**

**Section 1.**

- (a) Recommendations for proposed amendments to the Rules and Regulations of the Grand Bethel:
- (1) Shall be written by members of the Grand Bethel and then sent to the Youth Committee sixty (60) days prior to any scheduled meeting of the Grand Bethel Congress.
  - (2) Or shall be written by members of the Grand Guardian Council and sent to the Youth Committee sixty (60) days prior to any scheduled meeting of the Grand Bethel.
- (b) The Youth Committee will make proposed amendments that have been submitted correctly available to the Grand Bethel members at least thirty (30) days prior to the scheduled meeting.
- (c) All amendments approved by the Grand Bethel shall be submitted in the proper manner by a member of the Youth Committee to the GGC for approval at the Annual Session of the GGC.
- (d) Amendments become effective when approved by the GGC and the Jurisprudence Committee of the SGC.



**RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE  
MISS OREGON JOB'S DAUGHTER PAGEANT & PROGRAM**

**ARTICLE I  
TITLE**

**Section 1.**

- (a) The Daughter selected shall be known as Miss Oregon Job's Daughter, Job's Daughters International.

**ARTICLE II  
OBJECT**

**Section 1.**

- (a) Miss Oregon Job's Daughter shall act as a representative of Oregon Job's Daughters to other Masonic organizations and the general public. The office serves to promote the interest, welfare and growth of the order, to serve as a representative to other Masonic relations, to promote public knowledge and interest of the Order, and to report back to the Daughters of the State, the Grand Bethel, and the GGC.

**ARTICLE III  
AUTHORITY AND SUPERVISION**

**Section 1. Authority**

- (a) The Miss Oregon Job's Daughter program shall be under the supervision of the GGC of Oregon.

**Section 2. Administration**

- (a) The Miss Oregon Job's Daughter Program shall be administered by the Youth Leadership Team. See Oregon Grand Bethel 1 Article 3 Section 1.
- (1) The Miss Oregon Job's Daughter Program shall have representation on the Youth Committee with the appointment of a Miss Oregon Job's Daughter Coordinator.
  - (2) Miss Oregon Job's Daughter shall be a member of the Youth Advisory Board.
  - (3) Other adults and Daughters may be appointed by the Grand Guardian to assist in the administration of the Miss Oregon Job's Daughter program. Those appointed will work under the direction of the Miss Oregon Job's Daughter Coordinator.
- (b) Miss Oregon Job's Daughter shall be under the general supervision of the Grand Guardian. The Chairman of the Youth Committee shall provide guidance and approve all activities and expenditures.

**Section 3. Selection Process for Youth Committee Membership**

- (a) Adults interested in serving as the Miss Oregon Job's Daughter Coordinator shall submit a letter of interest to the Youth Committee fifteen (15) days prior to the Spring Grand Bethel Congress. All interested persons must be a current CAV.

**Section 4. Appointments**

- (a) The Youth Committee Chair shall forward all letters of interest to the Vice Grand Guardian at the spring Grand Bethel meeting.
- (b) The Vice Grand Guardian will make appointments to the Youth Committee in the manner prescribed for BGC appointments. See SI 8

## ARTICLE IV QUALIFICATIONS

### Section 1.

- (a) Miss Oregon Job's Daughter shall be a Daughter who possesses a thorough knowledge of the Order. She must be able to speak extemporaneously and represent the Order with dignity, poise, charm and good manners and charm. She should exude a general attitude that is positive and at all times seek to promote public knowledge of the Order.

## ARTICLE V ELIGIBILITY

### Section 1. Contestant

- (a) A Daughter must meet the eligibility requirements as set forth in the Rules and Regulations of the Miss International Job's Daughter pageant to be eligible to compete at the Miss IJD pageant during her term. See Supreme R & R Pageant 2, Article V
- (b) She should be willing and able to travel throughout the State of Oregon during her term as Miss Oregon Job's Daughter to promote Job's Daughters and the Good of the Order.
- (c) Each contestant and her parent(s), or legal guardian(s), shall sign a consent form prior to pageant entry.
- (d) A current or previous Miss Oregon Job's Daughter is not eligible to compete in future pageants. This includes runners-up of previous pageants who were later installed as Miss Oregon Job's Daughter.
- (e) A Bethel may have more than one (1) contestant.

### Section 2. Jurisdictional

- (a) The State of Oregon shall have the right to send one (1) Daughter to compete in the Miss International Job's Daughter Pageant.
- (b) Miss Oregon Job's Daughter shall compete in the International Pageant that occurs during her term. If she is unable to attend the Annual Session of the SGC, the 1st runner-up will be sent in her place.
- (c) In the event that a Miss Oregon Job's Daughter cannot fulfill her term, the 1st runner-up will become Miss Oregon Job's Daughter. If she is unable to accept, selection shall be made in succession from the runners-up.

## ARTICLE VI MISS OREGON JOB'S DAUGHTER PAGEANT

### Section 1. General

- (a) Miss Oregon Job's Daughter shall be selected by competition at the Miss Oregon Job's Daughter Pageant held in October each year or during an alternate month that is recommended by the Youth Committee and approved by the Grand Guardian.
- (b) In the event of a tie, it will be broken by referring to the combined written test and recitation scores of the tied contestants. The contestant with the highest combined score will be declared Miss Oregon Job's Daughter.

### Section 2. Requirements for Judging

- (a) Written Test
- (1) The test will consist of an examination based on general knowledge of the JDI Constitution and Bylaws, Manual of Rules and Regulations, and the Ritual.

- (b) Ritual Recitation (Oral)
  - (1) The recitation will be given in the official regalia of a Bethel Officer.
  - (2) The Daughter will recite a Messenger's initiation lecture as selected by the Pageant Committee.
- (c) Interview
  - (1) Each contestant will have an interview with a panel of judges.
  - (2) Judges will receive a resume of each contestant giving age, education, work experience, leadership positions previously held, interests, ambitions and Job's Daughters achievements.
  - (3) The Daughter will be judged on her personality, diction, sincerity, manners, adaptability to the situation, resume, and the overall impression she makes.
- (d) Stage Appearance
  - (1) The dress will be an evening gown, appropriate for the age of the contestant and for representation of Job's Daughters.
  - (2) Judging will encompass the total picture the contestant presents, considering her personality, posture, poise, appropriate hairstyle and personal grooming.
  - (3) Contestants shall answer a question extemporaneously. Semi-finalists will be judged not only on the responses to the question but on the overall impression the contestant makes as she responds.

## ARTICLE VII DUTIES OF MISS OREGON JOB'S DAUGHTER

### Section 1. Duties

- (a) Miss Oregon Job's Daughter shall:
  - (1) Serve as a public relations emissary and give appropriate remarks at activities of the Grand Lodge or other Masonic affiliated organizations when invited to do so and upon the approval of the Chairman of the Miss Oregon Job's Daughter Committee.
  - (2) Work in conjunction with the Youth Leadership Team and the Miss Oregon Job's Daughter Pageant Chair in preparing for the Annual Pageant.
  - (3) Attend the Annual Session of the SGC and represent Oregon at the Miss IJD Pageant.
  - (4) Hold at least two (2) fundraisers during her term of office to help cover the costs of her term of office.
  - (5) Submit a report on the activities of her term as Miss Oregon Job's Daughter and provide an accounting of her expenses to the Youth Committee. The report will be presented at the next Annual Session of the GGC.

### Section 2. Regalia

- (a) A sash shall be presented to the Miss Oregon Job's Daughter at the time of the Pageant.
- (b) The official cape of Miss Oregon Job's Daughter shall be the State colors of Oregon, Navy blue and gold. The cape and crown shall remain the property of the Grand Guardian Council of Oregon.
- (c) The official flower of Miss Oregon Job's Daughter shall be the red rose.

## **ARTICLE VIII SUCCESSION**

### **Section 1.**

- (a) Miss Oregon Job's Daughter shall compete in the International Pageant that occurs during her term. If she is unable to attend the Annual Session of the SGC, the 1st runner-up will be sent in her place
- (b) In the event that a Miss Oregon Job's Daughter cannot fulfill her term, the 1st runner-up will become Miss Oregon Job's Daughter. If unable to accept, selection shall be made in succession from the runners-up.

## **ARTICLE IX FINANCE**

### **Section 1. Receipts**

- (a) The Miss Oregon Job's Daughter shall be financed as follows:
  - (1) Entry fees shall be paid by the contestant or her Bethel.
  - (2) Miss Oregon Job's Daughter fund raising projects. At least one (1) fundraiser during her term shall be for the expenses incurred by Miss Oregon Job's Daughter travel to the Supreme Session in which she competes.
  - (3) Gifts.
  - (4) Coin March at the Pageant.
- (b) Other income efforts as designated by the Youth Committee

### **Section 2. Disbursements**

- (a) The Youth Leadership Team shall submit a budget for approval by the Grand Guardian Council.
  - (1) All expenditures shall be reimbursed as per the approved Budget.
  - (2) All expenditures not in the approved Budget shall have prior approval of the Grand Guardian Council Finance Committee unless other arrangements have been made with and approved by the Youth Committee.

### **Section 3. Audit**

- (a) The Youth Committee shall be responsible to see that the books of the Miss Oregon Job's Daughter program and the reconciled bank statements are given to the Grand Secretary to be presented to the Audit Committee for the annual audit.

## **ARTICLE X MISS OREGON JOB'S DAUGHTER SCHOLARSHIP**

### **Section 1. General**

- (a) The fund shall be known as the Miss Oregon Job's Daughter Scholarship.
- (b) All money, donations and bequests specified for the purpose of the Miss Oregon Job's Daughter Scholarship and interest that accumulates shall remain in the scholarship fund.

### **Section 2. Award**

- (a) A scholarship shall be awarded to Miss Oregon Job's Daughter in the amount of no more than one thousand dollars (\$1000.00) upon completion of her year if there are sufficient funds to do so.

**ARTICLE XI  
AMDENDMENTS**

**Section 1.**

- (a) Recommendations for proposed amendments to the Rules and Regulations of the Miss Oregon Job's Daughter Pageant:
  - (1) Shall be written by members of the Grand Bethel and then sent to the Youth Committee sixty (60) days prior to any scheduled meeting of a Grand Bethel Congress.
  - (2) Or shall be written by members of the Grand Guardian Council and sent to the Youth Committee sixty (60) days prior to any scheduled meeting of the Grand Bethel Congress.
- (b) The Youth Committee will make proposed amendments that have been submitted correctly available to the Grand Bethel members at least thirty (30) days prior to the scheduled meeting.
- (c) All amendments approved by the Grand Bethel shall be submitted in the proper manner by a member of the Youth Committee to the GGC for approval at the Annual Session of the GGC.
- (d) Amendments become effective when approved by the GGC and the Jurisprudence Committee of the SGC.